
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
Commissioners' Meeting 

June 27, 2023 (Hybrid Meeting) 

5:00 P.M. 

1. Call to Order/Flag Salute  

2. Approval of the Agenda 

3. Volunteer Recognition 

4. Commissioner Absence 

5. Communications  

6. Approve minutes of June 13, 2023 Commissioner meeting 

7. Voucher Approval 
 Accounts Payable Vouchers:  199559-199630 $    309,426.30 
 Payroll Vouchers 199543-199558: $    952,930.46 
  SUBTOTAL VOUCHERS: $1,262,356.76   

 ACH Payroll Transfer: $1,255,256.74 
 941 Payment – ACH Payroll Transfer $    333,875.15 
 Wire Transfer Fees $             80.00   
  SUBTOTAL PAYROLL ACH TRANSFERS: $ 1,589,211.89 

GRAND TOTAL VOUCHERS AND ACH TRANSFERS:   $ 2,851,568.65 

8. Local 3390 Reports  

9. Chiefs Reports 

10. Standing Committee Reports 

11. Finance Report K. Hackmeister  

12. Chairman’s Report 

13. 2022 Bond Update 

14. OLD BUSINESS     
a.  
b.   
 

15. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Resolution 2023-08 – Canceling Checks-Warrants  K. Hackmeister 
b.  

 

16. Open Public Comment (state your name for the record, you will have 3 minutes) 

17. GOOD OF THE ORDER 

18. SPECIAL INTERESTS/UPCOMING EVENTS   

Adjourn Meeting.  Next regular meeting will be July 11, 2023, at 5:00 PM 



 

 
 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS’ MEETING MINUTES 
June 13, 2023 

Chairman Urvina called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. and led the flag salute. 
 
Present: Commissioners Urvina, Wilsie, Nelson and Sutich, F/C D. Doan, A/Cs P. Oldenburg, T. 
Meyer, S. Booth, J. Johnson, J. Black, Finance Director Krystal Hackmeister and EA T. 
VanderVaate.   

 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
Commissioners Sutich and Nelson moved and seconded approval of the agenda as presented. With 
no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 

 
COMMISSIONER ABSENCE 
Commissioners Nelson and Sutich moved and seconded approval of Commissioner Entze’s 
absence from today’s meeting.  With no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by 
unanimous roll call vote. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS  
The agenda packet contains a thank you letter from the Fox Island Historical Society. 
 
MINUTES AND BLANKET VOUCHERS 
Commissioners Wilsie and Nelson moved and seconded approval of the May 23, 2023 meeting 
minutes.  With no further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 
 
Commissioners Nelson and Sutich moved and seconded approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers 
199430-199542 as set forth in the agenda for a total consideration of $483,069.54.  With no 
further discussion, the MOTION CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 

 
LOCAL 3390 REPORTS 
 
CHIEFS REPORTS 
 
Chief Black reported: 
 A/V upgrades are very close to being complete, waiting on one piece of equipment; 
 WSRB rating is complete and came back favorably.  A review meeting is scheduled. 
 Announcement for hiring an IT Manager has been posted. 
 Announcement for a Lead Mechanic will be posted soon, this will be for internal 

candidates only. 
 SCBAs are coming up on expiration, new ones have been ordered and we hope to have 



 
Board of Commissioners 

06‐13‐2023 Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 

them by the end of the year. 
 

Chief Meyer reported: 
 The driver/operator process is underway this week with a total of 35 applicants. 
 Work continues on updating response packages.  Have met with Firecom, and their staff is 

working to update the CAD and test prior to rolling out. 
 Going back to priority dispatching on 8/1/2023.  This is A-E coding with Alpha being the 

lowest priority and E being the highest priority like cardiac arrest or house fire. 
 District will be adding extra staffing for July 3-4, 2023.  If conditions and call volumes 

warrant, the time may be extended.  
 
Chief Booth reported: 
 Focus Survey to evaluate our safety culture had 85% of eligible employees participate; 

Drexel is currently evaluating the responses to prepare a report for us. 
 L&I FIRE program a grant application and two safety improvement plans (Cancer and 

Musculoskeletal injury) are due by the end of June. 
 The Gig Harbor Maritime Festival was a big success; we gave away 30 life jackets and 130 

helmets (both bicycle and multi-sport).  All interactions were very positive. 
 Several members of District staff attended a DEM workshop today for PC Alert.  Was a 

great workshop. 
 
Chief Oldenburg reported: 
 Finance Division 

o State audit began last week. 
o Meeting with NW Municipal Advisors regarding first reporting requirements for 

reporting to the federal government. 
o Payroll has learned a lot with regard to PFML. 
o Holiday leave reporting to DRS is currently being investigated.  More information 

will be brought to the Board as we learn more. 
o Washington CARES premiums will begin being collected July 1, 2023. 

 Human Resources 
o Janelle Gunder, the HR Program Manager, is heavily involved in the 

Driver/Operator and promotional processes. 
 Administration 

o District staff are working to update numerous district policies. 
 
Chief Doan Reported: 
 He continues to serve on steering committees for Penmet Parks. 
 The Maritime Festival weekend was a lot of fun.  Enjoyed judging the parade with Chief 

Busey. 
 Today he participated in a risk assessment interview with the State Auditor’s Office. 
 He attended the recent Washington Fire Chiefs conference in Wenatchee and was elected 

to the Washington Fire Chiefs Board. 
 The Pierce County Fire Chiefs board is continuing its work regarding obtaining more 

accurate call answering, call processing and dispatch time data from South Sound 911. 



 
Board of Commissioners 

06‐13‐2023 Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 

 The CAD to CAD project between South Sound 911 and Kitsap 911 continues to move 
forward.  Hope to implement before the end of this year. 

 DEM requested $1.8 million in funding from South Sound 911.  The PSCOC and Pierce 
County Fire Chiefs Board did not recommend moving the request forward for approval by 
the South Sound 911 Board.  Discussion followed. 

 Local 3390 has provided some information obtained from the IAFF regarding PFAS in 
turnout gear.  There is a new report indicating PFAS may also be in duty uniforms.  The 
Safety Committee is working to obtain information.  The District takes safety seriously. 

 Two community updates regarding the August 1 general levy are scheduled for June 14 
and June 20.   

 Fleet & Facilities and Finance Committee meetings are scheduled for June 14 and 15, 
respectively. 

 
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS  
Commissioner Wilsie reported the Labor Management Committee met several times with 
members of Local 3390 and District staff to bargain regarding PFML premiums.  The two sides 
were not able to come to an agreement.  This matter is likely going to arbitration. 
 
CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 
2022 CAPITAL BOND PROJECTS UPDATE 
Chief Johnson reported regarding the status of the building permit process for the Station 53, 57, 
Training Tower Building and Training Support buildings.  The Puyallup Tribe requested a 
Cultural Resource Study for the training campus.  A study was conducted and no artifacts were 
found. We expect to receive the final report by the end of this month. Work continues with the 
City of Gig Harbor for domestic water for Station 58, the Training Tower/Support buildings.  An 
announcement has been put out to establish a design committee for the rebuild of Station 51.  We 
estimate the design process will take one year. 
 
OLD BUSINESS  

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION.   
At 5:28pm, Chairman Urvina announced a 30-minute Executive Session pursuant to RCW 
42.30.110(1)(g) to review the performance of a public employee and RCW 42.30.140 to discuss 
collective bargaining negotiations.  The meeting was called back to regular session at 5:58pm.   

 
NEW BUSINESS 
A. Retiree Medical Program Application.  Chief Black presented a Retiree Medical Program 

Application on behalf of Fleet Mechanic Mike Smith with the recommendation the Board approve 
the request.  Commissioners Nelson and Wilsie moved and seconded approval of the Retiree 
Medical Program Application of Mike Smith.  With no further discussion, the MOTION 
CARRIED by unanimous roll call vote. 

B. Rice Fergus Miller AIA Contract for Station 51 Design.  Chief Johnson reported to the Board that 
the contract had been reviewed by legal counsel and no changes were requested.  This is a planned 
project currently budgeted for and unless the Board has any objections, Chief Doan will execute the 
contract for the work to move forward.  No objections were raised. 



 
Board of Commissioners 

06‐13‐2023 Meeting Minutes 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
SPECIAL INTERESTS/UPCOMING EVENTS 
June 14, 2023 Levy Information Presentation, 6:00pm @ Station 51, 6711 Kimball Drive, Gig 
Harbor. 
June 20, 2023 Levy Information Presentation, 6:00pm @ Station 51, 6711 Kimball Drive, Gig 
Harbor. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to discuss, Chairman Urvina adjourned the meeting at 6:03pm.  

The next regular meeting will be 5:00pm on Tuesday, June 27, 2023. 

 

 
Chairman/Commissioner 

 

 
Commissioner 

 

 
Commissioner 

 

 
Commissioner 

 
 

Commissioner 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Attest:  District Secretary 



PAYROLL: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 199543 through 199558 952,930.46$       952,930.46$        
(Benefit & L&I Monthly Payment)

1,255,256.74$    1,255,256.74$     
941 ACH Payroll Transfer Amount: 333,875.15$       333,875.15$        

Wire Fees Transfer Amount: 80.00$                80.00$                 

2,542,142.35$   GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE & PAYROLL:

VOUCHER APPROVAL: June 12, 2023
APPROVED BY AC Oldenburg 

ACH Payroll Transfer Amount:



VOUCHER APPROVALS
Pierce County Fire District #5 Time: 11:15:18 Date: 06/12/2023

06/30/2023 To: 06/30/2023 Page: 1

Voucher Claimant Trans Date Type Acct # Amount Memo

   199543 AFLAC 1983 06/30/2023 Payroll 1 2,510.69

   199544 BHT BUSINESS SERVICES 
INDUSTRY

1984 06/30/2023 Payroll 1 7,754.91

   199545 COLUMBIA BANK 1985 06/30/2023 Payroll 1 23,122.35

   199546 DEPT LABOR & INDUSTRIES 1986 06/30/2023 Payroll 1 88,265.21

   199547 Employment Security Dept - 
PFMLA&LTC

1987 06/30/2023 Payroll 1 14,634.22

   199548 GHFFU HEALTH & WELFARE 1988 06/30/2023 Payroll 1 105,712.56

   199549 KEY BANK - DECISION POINT 1989 06/30/2023 Payroll 1 207,891.46

   199550 KEY BANK - FIDELITY 1990 06/30/2023 Payroll 1 15,207.52

   199551 LOCAL 3390 GHFUHW TRUST 1991 06/30/2023 Payroll 1 206,008.17

   199552 Local 3390 GHFUHW Trust 1992 06/30/2023 Payroll 1 16,990.74

   199553 THE HARTFORD 1993 06/30/2023 Payroll 1 7,308.82

   199554 TRUSTMARK VOLUNTARY 
BENEFITS

1994 06/30/2023 Payroll 1 6,763.98

   199555 VISION SERVICE PLAN - AT 1995 06/30/2023 Payroll 1 69.45

   199556 WASHINGTON PER SYSTEM
EMP

1996 06/30/2023 Payroll 1 21,651.86

   199557 WASHINGTON STATE 
TREASURER

1997 06/30/2023 Payroll 1 21,977.00

   199558 WLEO & FFR SYSTEM EMPE 1998 06/30/2023 Payroll 1 207,061.52

952,930.46Total Vouchers:



VOUCHER APPROVALS
Pierce County Fire District #5 Time: 11:15:18 Date: 06/12/2023

06/30/2023 To: 06/30/2023 Page: 2

Voucher Claimant Trans Date Type Acct # Amount Memo

Commissioner Signatures:

=

________________________________________  ________________________________________
Chair

=

________________________________________  ________________________________________

==

________________________________________  

=

CERTIFICATION: I, the undersigned do hereby certify under penalty of perjury, that the materials have been 
furnished, the services rendered or the labor performed as described and that the claim is a due and unpaid 
obligation against Pierce County Fire District #5 and that I am authorized to authenticate and certify to said 
claim.

=

________________________________________    _______________
District Secretary                                                              Date                                                                         

=



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 199559 through 199590 56,507.71$                56,507.71$                          

56,507.71$                56,507.71$                          
 

56,507.71$                       

VOUCHER APPROVAL: June 14, 2023
APPROVED BY FINANCE DIRECTOR HACKMEISTER

Total Accounts Payable Invoices:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

PAYABLES RUN FOR COUNTY'S WARRANT PRINTING ON 6/14/23















ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: Dollar Amount TOTAL

Voucher Nos: 199591 through 199595 34,871.04$                34,871.04$                          
199596 through 199630 218,047.55$              218,047.55$                        

252,918.59$              252,918.59$                        
 

252,918.59$                     

VOUCHER APPROVAL: June 20, 2023
APPROVED BY ASSISTANT CHIEF OLDENBURG

Total Accounts Payable Invoices:

GRAND TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:

PAYABLES RUN FOR COUNTY'S WARRANT PRINTING ON 6/21/23

















Pierce County Fire Protection District #5

Monthly Financial Dashboard Report

May-2023 May 31, 2023

OPERATING REVENUES Amended Budget May YTD % of Budget Highlights: 

Taxes 32,153,373          3,049,895   17,338,857  53.93% Expected

Intergovernmental 1,744,125            131,826       1,087,965    62.38% Expected

Charges for Service 1,674,399            180,402       935,930       55.90% Expected

Other/Non-Revenue 142,135               16,073         133,125       93.66% Expected

Transfers/BFB Carryover 1,175,243            -               -               0.00% Budget Amendment Items

Total Revenues: 36,889,275          3,378,195   19,495,877  52.85% Expected

OPERATING EXPENSES: Amended Budget May YTD % of Budget Highlights: 

Salaries 22,983,970          1,782,216   8,853,736    38.5% Expected

Benefits 6,885,138            581,764       2,724,644    39.6% Expected

Supplies 1,959,898            142,113       537,466       27.4% Expected

Services 3,731,016            231,414       1,231,357    33.0% Expected

Capital Improvements 1,011,000            71,561         472,122       46.7% Expected

Debt Service -                       -               -               0.0% N/A

Transfers -                       -               -               0.0% N/A

Total Expenses: 36,571,022          2,809,068   13,819,325  37.8% Expected

EXPENSES BY DIVISION: Amended Budget May  YTD % of Budget Highlights: 

Legislative 381,694               16,101         137,863       36.1% Expected

Finance & Admin 2,350,674            167,099       821,580       35.0% Expected

Operations 24,776,080          1,902,122   9,257,613    37.4% Expected

Logistics 6,631,065            447,060       2,503,919    37.8% Expected

Health & Safety 2,127,666            217,557       935,265       44.0% Expected

Capital/Bond 303,843               59,129         163,085       53.7% Expected

Total Expenses: 36,571,022          2,809,068   13,819,325  37.8% Expected

CAPITAL FUND (BOND): Amended Budget May  YTD % of Budget Highlights: 

Project Management 501,343               1                  2,483           0.5% Expected

Training Campus 8,005,845            131,668       695,921       8.7% Expected

Station 57 244,291               56,972         141,375       57.9% Expected

Station 53 100,458               54,713         136,664       136.0% Expected

Station 51 749,432               -               -               0.0% Expected

Total Capital Projects: 9,601,369            243,353       976,443       10.2% Expected

ENDING CASH: 12/31/2022 5/31/2023 12/31/2021 Highlights: 

General Expense 12,624,848          17,118,128  11,941,200  

Reserve Fund 6,961,915            8,327,101    6,847,720    

Capital Fund* 50,139,722          50,376,059  -               *Restricted use for eligible projects

Debt Fund (GO BOND) 143,711               2,055,736    -               

PCSORT* 110,878               108,745       134,772       *Restricted, GHFMO is Lead Agency 

Total: 69,981,074          77,985,769  18,923,692  



 
 
 

 

 

RESOLUTION 2023-08 
June 27, 2023 

 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Fire Commissioners of Pierce County Fire Protection District No. 5 
to cancel municipal warrant(s) not received or lost by vendors and warrant(s) issued in error as follows:  
 
WHEREAS, Pierce County Fire Protection District No. 5 issued the following check(s) and warrant(s) 
which were lost and/or not received by the vendor; and  
 

Warrant(s) Amount Check Date Vendor 
1640834    $49.00  05/31/2022 Ryan Kress 
1663090  $643.98  11/08/2022 Wilco 
1664972    $49.36  11/21/2022 Scott Corrigan 
1665993    $22.68  11/29/2022 Dan Bjurstrom 
1673993  $643.98  01/31/2023 Wilco 
1682548  $240.00  03/20/2023 TRA 
1682848  $239.22 03/28/2023 WA Water 
1689248      $144,124.58  05/08/2023 GHFFU Health & Welfare 

 
WHEREAS, Pierce County Fire Protection District No. 5 issued the following warrant(s) which were 
issued in error:  
 

Warrant(s) Amount Dated  Vendor 
1625406  $65.26   02/8/2022 Les Schwab Tires 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. The above-listed warrants shall be canceled and the Pierce County Auditor shall transfer all 
records of these warrants so as to leave the funds as if such warrants had never been drawn. 
 

2. Said amount for the following checks and warrants shall be reissued by Pierce County Fire 
Protection District No. 5 by and included in the following Voucher Nos below: 

Voucher Warrant(s) Amount Dated  Vendor 
198877  1640834    $49.00  05/31/2022 Ryan Kress 
198808  1663090  $643.98  11/8/2022 Wilco 
199364  1664972    $49.36  11/21/2022 Scott Corrigan 
199559  1665993    $22.68  11/29/2022 Dan Bjurstrom 
199077  1673993  $643.98  01/31/2023 Wilco 
199391  1682548  $240.00  03/20/2023 TRA 
199396  1682848  $239.22 03/28/2023 WA Water 
199610  1689248      $144,124.58  05/08/2023 GHFFU Health & Welfare 
 

  



 
Approved at a regular meeting of the Board of Fire Commissioners, Pierce County Fire District No. 5, 
this 27th day of June, 2023. 
 

PIERCE COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT NO. 5 
 
 

      _________________________________ 
      Chairman 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Commissioner 

Attest: 
 
 
__________________________ 
District Secretary 


	2023-06-27 AGENDA.pdf
	Commissioner Mtg Minutes 06-13-2023
	Voucher Totals - 06122023 Payroll
	Voucher Approvals - 06122023 Payroll
	Voucher Totals - 06.14.23
	Voucher Approvals - 06.14.23
	Voucher Totals - 06.20.23
	Voucher Approvals #1 - 06.20.23
	Voucher Approvals #2 - 06.20.23

